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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

N0D23'22 m 9:39 RCMD

REQUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (NH DOE) to enter into a SOLE SOURCE
contract with Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (VC#177203), Concord, NH,
in the amount of $4,443,148 for the Fuel Assistance Program effective upon approval of Governor and
Executive Council through September 30, 2024. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account in FY 2023 upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget;

NH Department of Energy. Fuel Assistance

02-52-52-520010-33 540000

074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief

FY2023

$4,443,148

2) Further request authorization to advance Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc. $330,839 from the above-referenced contract amount.

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action Agencies
(CAA) in the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), their outreach and client service
capabilities, the synergies that benefit the FAP as a result of the five statewide CAAs' implementation of
several other federal assistance programs, and the infrastructure that is already in place to deliver FAP
services. NH DOE proposes to continue to subcontract with the five CAAs who have successfully
provided FAP services at the local level for more than three decades. The CAAs work closely with the
NH DOE FAP Administrator in the implementation of the program.

FAP is a statewide program, funded by a Federal Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program
(LIHEAP) Block Grant, and works to make home energy more affordable for income-qualified New
Hampshire families, including those who are elderly or disabled. Program funds are targeted to low
income households with high energy burdens. The current maximum income level is 60% of the State
Median Income (SMI), which is $74,941 for a family of four. The average FAP benefit during the last
program year was $1,342. The program operates on an October 1st to September 30"* program year.



His Excellency, Governor ChrislopherT. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

December 7,2022
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The proposed advance of funds will enable the CAA to operate the program between monthly
reimbursements" from the State.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

spectfully^l^itted,

Jared Chicoine

Commissioner
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AGBEEMm

The State of New Hampshire and tfaoCoohiKSbr he^^ thumally ajgree as fdlowr

CBNERAL provisions'

1 .i n state Agency Name
New MainpahJre Depailment of Energy

i;2 Stab»Aj^eacy Address
21 South FlfUitSt.,Stb;<IO
Concord, New Har^priiire 03301

1.3 CoiiD'actoi Name ;
Commuiii^ Action Profjun fielknap>Menimaek Counties, Inc.

i.4 Contractor Addi^.
P.O. Box 1016, Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Cootnctor Phone

- Nufflbff

<603)225;3295

1.6 Account Number

02-52-52'5200

074.5005S7

1.7 Cmopletton Dale .
September,30,2(03

1.8 Prke Limitation
$4,443,148.00

1.9, Cpnti^ag OfR^ 1^
El^ Sroigiow^l. Aasisia^ f^o^am Administrator

1.10, State Alsency Tekpbdoe Number
(603)271.^07?,

kl.ll Contiactor Sign hire

; Date: 1I-/8/2022

1.12-Name and Title of Coobncmr S^nstoiy

JeanM.Agri\ C^ief Exoct^e bfn^

/  1 ly State 1.14 NuneimdTUleofStBmA^cy Sigii^^

C-l\ rcoirxp 1 I'ouff
1  'Ai^val by 0M N!H. Departmmt ofAdmihistratioiu DM^ of P^

/  Director, On:

1.16 Appirival^ lh^Ai^/i^Oene^ fFcrih, Substance and ExecmkM)^(9y^toh/a;

By: On: 11/22/2022

1.17 A{^)rovid by the Odveinor and Executive CotmcU

OftC Item number: O&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO. BE PERFORMED. The Slate of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block l.l
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COIWLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to-the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hcrcundcr, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to-lhc"
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without- limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7. ^

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payrhents hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state of federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part; In no event .shall the State be liable for. any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or

.termihate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the' Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Accoimt arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and rhore particularly described in* EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability, to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement dtose
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Liraiitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor' shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws.' In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall ̂ o comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affurnative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. "hie Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under ail applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, fum or
corporation'with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination; '
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; arid/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion" of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days affer the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and
submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.
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10. DATAyACCESS/CONFroENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As lised. in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or, unfinished. *

10.2 All data and any property wKich has been received from
the State or purchased with fiinds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the Slate, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.
12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omission of the
Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The Slate shall not
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be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragr^h U.Notwithst^dinglhe foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a*waivcr of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant .in p'aragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of.this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at» its sole expense,- obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall 'require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance; ^
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims"
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and ,
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the'propcrty.
14.2 The^policies described In subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The'Contractor ishall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified-in'block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also fiimish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificale(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference. -

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION. .
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and wairants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chaptcr'281-A ("Workers'
Compensation"). '• • ' ̂
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 28l-A,'^Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers*. Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of.Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-Aian'd'any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended) waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval^is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
arid assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control..

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21-. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no'way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth In the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. Intheeventanyoftheprovisionsofthis
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal jaw, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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EXfflBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. On or before the date set forth in Block 1.7 of the General Provisions, the Contractor shall
deliver to the State an independent audit of the Contractor's entire agency by a qualified independent
auditor in good standing with the state and federal government'

2. - This audit shall be conducted in accordance wiA the audit requirements of Office of
Management and Budget (0MB) Circular 2 CFR 200, Subpah F - Audit Requirements. The Fuel
Assistance Program shall be considered a "major program" for purposes of this audit.

3. .This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and expenditures by contract or grant
number of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The Contractor shall utilize a
competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least every four years.

4. The audit report shall include a schedule of prior years' questioned costs along with an Agency
response to the current status of the prior years' questioned costs. Copies of all 0MB letters written as
a result of audits shall be forwarded to NH DOE. The audit shall be forwarded to NH DOE within one

month of the time of receipt by the Agency, accompanied by'an action plan for each finding or
questioned cost.

5. Delete the following from paragraph 10 of the General Provisions: "The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be identical to those of any Final
Report described in Exhibit A."

*

6. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost
principles-detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principles'

7. . Program and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the Agency for
three years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report per 2 CFR 200.334 - Retention
Requirements for Records and until all audit findings have been resolved.

8. In accordance with Public Law 103-333, the "Departments of Labor, Health and Human
Services, and Education, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act of 1995," the following provisions
are applicable to this grant award: . .

a) Section 507: "Purchase of American -Made Equipment and Products - It is the sense of
the Congress that, to the greatest extent practicable, all equipment and products
purchased with fimds made available in this Act should be American-made."

b) Section 508: "When issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid
solicitations and other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in
part with federal money, all states receiving federal funds, including but not limited to
state and local governments and recipients of federal research grants, shall clearly state
(1) the percentage of the total costs of the program'or project which will be financed
with federal money, (2) the dollar amount of federal flmds for the project or program,
and (3) the percentage and dollar amount of the tot^ costs of the project or program
that will be financed by non-governmental sources."

CAPBM LIHEAP23 a
Award#230INHUEA/2301NHUEE Exhibits A^aA C

CFDA#93 568 Conbyctor. ImtialLjn
Page'I of,4



9. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required reports and reimbursement requests shall be
submitted to the State within 30 days of the completion date (Agreement Block 1.7).

10. ADVANCES. Advance funds must be used solely for appropriate Fuel Assistance Program
expenditures. Advance program funds are to be used only for Fuel Assistance Program vendor
payments. All Fuel Assistance Program payments, including Advance program payments, must be
transferred from the Community Action Agency's (CAA's) general operating account into a specific
Fuel Assistance Program account within 48 hours after being received electronically from the State.
CAAs must submit the bank account number of the designated bank account for the advance funds to
NH DOE prior to the electronic submission of the funds to the CAA. Unspent Advance program
funds must remain in the FAP dedicated account at all times and cannot be comingled with any other
CAA funds. CAAs are required to submit a complete electronic copy of the FAP-dedicated bank
account statement to NH DOE on a monthly basis.
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EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Contractor agrees to provide Fuel Assistance Program services to qualified low-income
individuals, and agrees to perform all such services and other work necessary to operate the Program
in accordance with the requirements of this contract, the principles and objectives set forth in the Fuel
Assistance Program Procedures Manual, Information Memoranda, and other guidance as determined
byNHDOE.

Fuel Assistance Program (FAP) services will be defined to include the following categories:

1. Outreach, eligibility, determination and certification of FAP applicants;

2. Payments directly to energy vendors:
a. Reimbursement for goods and services delivered
b. Lines of credit

c. Budget plan payments;

3. Payments directly to landlords via vouchers for rentem who pay their energy costs as undefined
portions of their rent;

4. Payments directly to clients only when deemed appropriate and necessary as defined in the
Fuel Assistance Procedures Manual; and

5. Emergency Assistance in the form of reimbursements for goods or services delivered in
accordance with paragraphs 3 and 4 above.
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EXfflBITC

PAYMENT TERMS

In conisideration of the satisfactory performance of the services as determined by the State, the State
agrees to pay over to the Contractor the sum of $4,443,148.00 (which hereinafter is referred to as the

"Grant").

Upon the State's receipt of the 2023 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program grant from the
US Department of Health and Human Services, and Governor and Executive Council approval, the
following funds will be authorized:

LIHEAP PY2023 Funds:

$330,845.00 for administration costs, of which $54,923.00 will be issued as a cash advance;
$2,759,1(54.00 for program,costs, of which $275,916.00 will be issued as a cash advance;
$ 157,000.00 for Assurance 16. "

Supplemental Funds:
$118,536.00 for administration costs;
$1,077,603.00 for program costs.

The dates for this contract are upon Governor and Council approval through September 30, 2024.

Approval to obligate (Exhibit I) the above-awarded funds wijl be provided in writing by the New
Hampshire Department of Energy to the Contractor as the Federal funds become available.
Drawdowns frorri the balance of funds \yill be made to the Contractor only after written documentation
of cash need is submitted to the State. Disbursement of the Grant shall be in accordance with

procedures established by the State as detailed in the Fuel Assistance Program Procedures Manual.

CFDA Title:-

CFDA No::
■j

Award Name:

Federal Agency:

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

93.568

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

Health & Human Services
Administration for Children and Families
Office of Community Services
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3. of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative,' as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions, execute the following-Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections-S 151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989 regulations were
amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-216911 and require
certification by grantees (and by inference sub-grantees and sub-contractors) prior to award that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference
sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a state may elect to make one certification to the Department in each
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification.
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the Agency
awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government-wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form
should send it to:

Director, New Hampshire Department of Energy,
'21 So. Fruit St., Ste. 10, Concord, NH 03301

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
•  1'

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession of or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace
and specifying:the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about:

(1) 'the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) ' the grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-fi-ee workplace;
(3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee Assistance programs; and
(4) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in

the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will ''

(1) abide by the terms of the statement; and

L[HEAP23 P37 Exhibits D thru H
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, contM

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
t

(2) notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
' officer oh whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the federal agency

has designated'a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (dX2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) " Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health, law

♦^enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
i

Check n if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Community .Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Contractor Name

October 1. 2022 to September 30,2024
Period covered by this Certification

Jeanne Agri, Chief Executive Officer
Name and Title of AuthdrijEp.d Contractor Representative

Cent

11/8/2022 .
actorKeprcsentatRfe Stature Date

L1HEAP23

Award # 2301NHLIEA/2301NHLIEE
CFDA#93.568
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections l.l 1 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
LIHEAP ?

Contract Period: October.1, 2022 to September 30. 2024

The undersigned certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that:

(1) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf Of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or'employee of any agency, a member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor).

(2) If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for,
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor),
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying",
in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at ail tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails ;to file the required certification shall be
subject to.a civil penalty of not/ksithan $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

^  Chief Executive Officer
StractorRept^ritefi^e^ Contractor's Representative Title

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. 11/8/2022
Contractor Name Date .

V

LIHEAP23 P3 7 Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructions for Certification

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Department of Energy's determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure
of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person
from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact'upon which reliance was placed when NH
DOE determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the
federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The iDrospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the NH DOE agency to whom
this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction,"
"participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded,"
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the attached definitions.

(6) The.prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with
a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by NH DOE.

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Iiieligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions," provided by NHDOE, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions
and in ail solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certificatipn of a prospective participant in a lower
tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the
covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method
and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not
required to, check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in
order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary •
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition.to other remedies
available to the federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

LIHEAP23 P37 Exhibits D thru H
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, contM

Certificaiion Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or for a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes
or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph" (1) (b) of
this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
(federal; state or local) transactions terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - ̂ wer
Tier Covered'Tfansactions/' without modification in all lower tier-covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lower tier-covered transactlijnsi

Chief Executive Officer

Contractor RefpresenfatWe Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. 11/8/2022

Contractor Name Date
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Award U 2301NHL1EA/2301NHLIEE

CFDA<(93.568

P37 Exhibits D thru H

_ A Page SbfJ;
InitialOrr Date 'Z T-J



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
H-

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

ohtractofRep ignature

Chief Executive Officer

Contractor's Representative Title

Community Action Pro'eram Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. 11/8/2022
Contractor Name Dat®

LIHEAP23' Exhibits D thru H
Award # 2301NHLIEA/2301NHL1EE

CFDA#93.568
Initial^y\



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION

Public Law 103-227, Part C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

In accordance with Part C of Public Law 103-227, the "Pro-Children Act of 1994," smoking may not be permitted
in any portion of any indoor facility owned or regularly used for the provision of health, day care, education, or
library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by federal programs either directly or,
through state or local governments. Federal programs include grants, cooperative agreements, loans and loan
guarantees, and contracts. The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities
funded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions or facilities .used for inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment. ,

The above language must be included in any sub-awards that contain provisions for children's services and that
all sub-grantees shall certify compliance accordingly. Failure to comply with the provisions of this law may result
in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to $1,000 per day. •

Chief Executive Officer

htractpr Repre^tetive^S^

Communitv Action Program Belknan-Merrimack Gouhties. Inc.
Contractor Name

Contractor's Representative Title

n/8/2022

Date

LIHEAP23

Award # 2301NHLIEA/2301NHL1EE
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TAP Approval to Obligate

STATE

<»hEXAMPLE ONLY

APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE

FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

Exhibit I

First 7/1/2019 \A/ood and SEAS Only ADMIN. FA PROGRAM ,  SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

CONTRACTED BUDGET 538,220.00 .5.646,370.00 4,582.60 357,200.00 6,546,372.60 i
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE '  0.00 - 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,165,551.00 i
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00- "1.165,551.00 0.00 0.00 1,165,551.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 538,220.00 4,480,819.00 4,582.60 357,200.00 5,380,821.60

BMCA

4

First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE16 TOTAL

CONTRACTED BUDGET . 95,663.00 1,003,586.00 1,000.00 69,960.00 1,170,209.00
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED .0!00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE ..0.00 207,112.00 ^  c.oo 0.00 207,112.00
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE *  0.00 207,112.00 ,  0.00 0.00 207,112.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 95,663:00' 796.474.00 1.000.00 69,960.00 963,097.00

SNHS

First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 '  TOTAL

CONTRACTED BUDGET 163,777.00 1,718,152.00' 1,000.00 84,220.00 1,967,149.00 j
EXPECTED BUDGET . 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0:00 .0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 354,578.00 0.00 0.00 354,578.00

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE . ̂0.00 354,578.00 0.00 0.00 354,578.00

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 163,777.00 1,363,574.00 1,000.00 84,220.00 1,612,571.00

scs

First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

CONTRACTED BUDGET 83.835.00 879,501.00 825.00 64,960.00 1,029,121.00

EXPECTED BUDGET '  0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 181,504.00 0.00 0.00 181,504.00

TOTAL AVAILABLE JO OBLIGATE 0.00 181,504.00 0.00 0.00 181,504.00

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 83,835.00 697,997.00 825.00 64,960.00 847,617.00

CAPSC ;

First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. ' FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

CONTRACTED BUDGET 54,676.00 573,593.00 757.60 55,110.00 684,136.60

EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 118,373.00 0.00 ' 0.00 118,373.00

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE " 0.00 118,373.00 0.00 0.00 118,373.00

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 54,676.00 455,220.00 757.60 55,110.00 565,763.60

TCCA

First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

CONTRACTED BUDGET 140,269.00 1,471,538.00 1,000.00 82,950.00 1,695,767.00

EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00 .

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 303,984.00 0.00 0.00 303,984.00

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 ' 303,984.00 0.00 0.00 303,984.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 140,269.00 ' 1,167,554.00 1,000.00 82,950.00 1,391,773.00

- ,P37 Exhibit 1
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND

TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated fu-st-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensation Information), the'
New Hampshire Department of Energy must report the following information for any sub-award or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity;
2) Amount of award;
3) Funding agency;
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants;
5) Program source;
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding actiori;
7) Location of the entity;
8) Principal place of performance;
9) Unique identifier qfthe entity (DUNS#);
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues arc from the Federal government and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually, and ^
b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA-required data by the end of the month plus 30 days in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparehcy Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as' identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions, execute the following Certification:'

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Department ofEher^ and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial

jcburitability-and Transiency Act.

^  Jeanne Agri. Chief Executive Officer
itb^r.ReprcsCT^^^^ Sikifefure) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. 11/8/2022

(Contractor Name) (Date)

Contractor Initial^^__
DatelVls.z.-;-.
Page I of2
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NEW HAMPSfflRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The Unique Entity Identifier (UEI) number for your entity is: FND1A6MY3JD3 •

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements?

,  NO X YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here.
I

If the answer to U2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business or
organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO X YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here.

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: . Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: , Amount:

Name: .. . Amount:

Name: Amount:

Contractor tnitiafeOkr
Pate
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION

PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28, 1965. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of

State's office have been received and is in good st^ding as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63021

Certificate Number: 0005774597

u.

A
%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 9th day of May A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM.
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. ̂
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Dennis Martino. President. Board of Directors, hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected officer of Community Action Program Bdlknao-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called
and held on January 13. 20'22. at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agri, Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Michael Tabory,

phief Operating Officer/Deputy Director, Jill Lesmerises, Chief Fiscal Officer, Steven

Gregoire, Budget Analyst, Dennis Martino, President, Board of Directors are duly authorized
oh behalf of Community Action Program Belknao-Merrimack Counties. Inc. to enter into contracts

or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and
further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and

any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable
or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. i hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This

authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further
certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will reiy on this certificate as evidence
that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and,that they have full
authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any
listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

a  I

Dated: 10/20/2022 Signature of Elected nffir.pr
Name: Dennis Martino

Title: President, Board of Directors

Rev. V13/2022
Mh:COA 2022 - danrit martino

Mailing Address P.O^ Box 1016, Concord, NH 03302 Administrative Office 2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord, NH
Phone; 603 225-3295 j 1 800 856-5525 TTY/TDD 1 800 735-2964 Fax:603 228-1898

^  Website: capbm.org



/KCORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DCWnnr)

09/30/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING iNSURER(S). AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(le8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Street

Manchester . NH 03101

cojjTACT Andrea Nicklln

(603)669-3218 (603)645-4331

AMRESS- fnanch.cerlsficrossagency.com
MSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICI

INSURER A; Seleictive Insurance Co. of SC 19259

INSURED ^

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties Inc.

P. 0. Box 1016

Concord NH 03302

INSURER B: Granite State Health Care and Human Services Self-
...

INSURER C : C® 20281

INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F ;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 22-23 All lines w/D&O REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS..

W&R
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

WUCVWF
IMM/DDfYYYYI

MUCYEXF
fMM/D0/YYYY1 UMITS 1

A

X COMMERCIAL GE4ERAL UABIUTY .

E  1 X| OCCUR

■V

S2S09940 10/01/2022 10/01/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE j 1,000,000

1 CLAIMS44AD DAMAGE TO REflTtO
PRFMISFR fFa occurrencal j 1.000,000

MEO EXP (Any one paraon) j 20.000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY j 1.000.000,

GENt AGGREGATE LIMn APPLIES PER:

^ Slog
GENERM. AGGREGATE 5 3.000.000

POLCY 1 X] "iF PRODUCTS - COMP/OPAGG j 3,000,000

OTHER:
S

A

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

$2509940 10/01/2022 10/01/2023

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT S 1.000.000

X ANY AUTO

HEDULED
TOS
IN-OWNED
TOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par parson) s

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

sc
AU

BODILY INJURY (Par acddant)

—

NC
AL

PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPar s

s

A

X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

•

S2509940 10/01/2022 10/01/2023
EACH OCCURRENCE J 5,000.000

'aggregate 5 5,000.000

DEO 1 ^ RETENTION $ ^ - s

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY y 1N
ANY PROPRlETOWPARTNER«XECUTrVE ["Tn
OFFCER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH) ' '
If yos, daactlba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow

N/A HCHS20220000547 (3a,) NH 01/01/2022 01/01/2023

w PER OTH-
4^ STATUTE ER

E.L EACH ACCIDENT J 1,000.000

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 5 1.000.000

E.L DISEASE - POLCY LIMIT 5 1.000.000

0
Directors & Officers Liability

82471794 04/01/2022 04/01/2023

Limit

Deduct! t)le

1,000,000

5.000

DESCRIPTION OP OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Ramadu Sdiadult. may ba attachwl U mon apac* la raqutrad)

Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

,  V

V

State of New Hampshire: Dept of Energy
21 South Fruit Street

Suite 10

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORO 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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To the Board of Directors .itfJVtH • r.()M;oki>

Communlly Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. STKAniAM
Concord. New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUPrTORS' REPORT

i

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Community Action Program of
Beiknap-Menimack Counties, Inc. (a nonproHt organization), which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as of February 28, 2022 and 2021, and the related consolidated
statements of activities, functionat expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the consolidated financlal staterhenls.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. as of February 28, 2022
and 2021, and the changes in its'net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in ar^rdance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United States
of America ar>d the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemmenf Auditing
Standards, Issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of bur report. We are required to be Independent of Community Action Program of
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions,

ftespons/b/i/ties of Afanagemenf for tha Financial Stataments

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements In accordance with accounting principles ger>eraily accepted In the United States of America,
and for the design, implementalion, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misslatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the flr>ancial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Community Action Program
of Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the
date that the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.



Auditors' Rosponsibiiitios for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are toVbtain reasonable assurance about wtiether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misslatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
report that Includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but Is not absolute
assurance ahd therefore Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists, the risk of not detecting a material misslatement r^uUing from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of inlemal coritrol. Misstaterrients are considered material if there Is
s substantial likelihood that, indivlduany or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial stalernents.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Govemmenf
Auditing Stand^ds. we:

•  Exercise professional judgmerit and maintain professtonal skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated finandal statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures Include examining, on a lest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
< procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of. Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties.
Inc.'s Internal control. Accordingly, ho such opinion Is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Community AcOon Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties.
' Inc.'s ability to rontinue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to cpmmunlcate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters;
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.



Suppfementary informaVon

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statemenis
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S.
Cotfe of Federal Regulations Part 200. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and Is not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such Information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The Information has t>een subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, Includirig comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statemenis themselves, and other additional procedures In accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted In the United Stales of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, In relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Govern/nenf Auditing Standards

In accordance wllh Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report dated September B.
2022, on our consideration of Community Acllon Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s
Interrial control over financial reporting and on our tests, of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, lnc.'s Internal control over fihandal reporting or on compliance. That
report Is an Integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Concord, New Hampshire
September 8, 2022



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP . MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Accounts receivable

Inventory
Prepaid expenses
investments

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Land, buildings and Improvements
;  . Equipment, furniture and vehicles

. CwstrucHon In process

,> Total property

Less accumulated depreciation

'* Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Cash escrow and reserve funds

Tenant security deposits
Due from related party -

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITieS AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT UABILITIES
Current portion of notes payable
Una of credit

.  Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Total currenlliabnilies *

e  *

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
. Payched( Protection Program loan
Notes payable, less current portion shown above
Tenant security deposits

Total Itabiniies

NET'ASSETS

Without dorxx restncUons

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILtriES AND NET ASSETS

2022

1.384,485

5,244,621
271.925
33.928
138.793

7.073.753

7.368,799
6,335,465

41,401

13.745.685

7.528,363

6.217.322

89.468

9.120

65.468

164.076

2021

699.766
3.762.809

55,695
73,709
127.996

4.920.175

7.146.518
8.117.020

16.126

13,281.662

7.639.290

5.642.372

65.437
6.831

72.318

$ 13.455.151 S 10.634.665

314,265
154,350

3.635,655

1,088.207
1.537.602

6,728.279

280.439
620,050

9,120

7.637.886

5.179.734
637.529

5.817.263

213,444
380.026

1.625.832
788.951

1.036.941

3.945.196

1,935,300
939.697

6.681

6.627.074

2.768,959
1.046.832

3,607.791

S 13.455.151 $ 10.634.865

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP ■ MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant awards

Rental Income

Other funds
Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness
In-kind
United Way

Interest Income

Realized gain on sale of equipment

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total

EXPENSES
Program
Management

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

$ 36.462.087
135,298

2.526.432
1.615.427
592.136

2.123

74

2.650.984

$ 36.482,087
135,298

6,177,416
1.615,427
592.136

2.123
74

7,200

.  41,360,777 2.650,984 44.011,761

3.062.287 (3.062.287)

44,423,064 ^ (411.303) 44,011,761

40.b84i851
1,917:438

- 40,084,651
1,917.438

42.002,269 42.002,289

2.420.775 (411.303) 2.009,472

2,758.959 1.048.832 3.807.791

$  5,179,734 $  637,529 $  5.817,263

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOUDATEO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITiES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARV 28.2021

Without Donor With Donor

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant awards

Rental Income

Other funds
In-kind

United Way
Interest Income

Realized gain on sale of equipment

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS

Total

EXPENSES

Program
Management

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE GAIN ON
INVESTMENTS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

GAIN ON INVESTMENT IN LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM LIMITED
PARTNERSHIP

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Restrictions .Restrictions Istfl!

$  20,625,325
123,657

2,375,403
490,035

5,297
383

3.500

$

3,733,525

$  20,625,325
123,657

6,106,628
490,035

5.297
363

3,500

23,623.600 3,733,525 27.357,125

3,047,507' (3,047,507)

26,671.107 686,018 27,357.125

28,194.346
1.274.501

- 26,194,346
1.274.501

27.468,847 . 27,468,847

(797,740) 686.018 (111,722)

64,397 - 64,397

(733,343) 686.018 (47.325)

2,992.894 362.814 3,355,708

499,408 499,408

$  2,758.959 $  1,048,632 $  3,607,791

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTtON PROGRAM BELKNAP • MERRtlVIACK CQUNT1£S. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

Program Management

Salaries and wages
Payroil taxes and benefits
Travel

Occupancy
Pfogi^ services
Other costs:

Accounting fees
Legal fees
Supplies
Postage and shipping
Equipment rental and maintenance
Printing and publications
ConfererKes, coriventlons and meetings
Interest

Insurance

Membership fees
Utility and maintenance
Computer services
Other

Depreciation
In-kind

Total functional expenses

7.961.177

2.296,690

194.343
1.267,982

25,639.659

15.361
159.844
49.860
1,141

28,133
13.964
29,187
124.730

16.276
88,702

■111.990
926,679
566.161
592.982

1.180,579
228,375

9,648
114,418

74.855
152

44.534
8.731

27,696

26,841
43.856

104,142

53,611

Total

9.141.756
2.525.065

203,991
1,382,400

25.639.659

74,855
15,513

204,378
58,591

1,141
55,829
13,964
56,028

168,566
16.276

192.844
111,990
980,290
566,151
592.982

$  40.084,851 $ 1.917,438 $ 42.002.289

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP • MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
•  FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARV 28. 2021

Pfooram Management

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes aruj benefits
Travel

Occupancy
Program services
Other costs: . ^

Accounting fees
Legal f^s
Supplies ^
Postage and shipping
Equipment rental and maintenance
Printing and publications
Conferences, conventions and meeUngs
Interest

Insurance ,
Membership fees
UllUly and maintenance ^
Computer services
Other

Depreciation
In-Mnd

Total functional expenses

8,423.286
2,308,290
145.104-

1,293.121
11.796.741

19,604
165,804
56,087
6,738
34.562

632

39,595
123.704

10,040
190.837

47.178
584,982
458,009
490.034

$ 567.382
229.777

809

136,322

80,013

30,710
8,986

3,551

22,938
27.528

7,019
62,^9
8,660

68,257

Total

0,010,668

2i538,067
145,913

1,429,443
11.798,741

60,013
19.604

196,514
65,073
6,738
38.113

632

62.533
151,232

17,059
253,366
55,638

653,239
458,009
490,034

$ 26.194.346 $ 1.274.501 $ 27,468,847

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMWUNITY ACTION PROCRAM BELKNAP ■ MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change In net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets to

net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation
Paycheck Proleclion program\ loan forgiveness
Interest on deferred financing costs
Realized gain on sale of equipment
Gain on Investment In limited partnership
Decrease (increase) In current assets:

Accounts receivable

inventory
Prepaid expenses
Due from related party

Decrease (increase) in current Itabililles:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Refundable advances

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property'
Additions to property
Investments

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Paycheck Protection loan
Net repayments on line of credit
Repayment of long term debt

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH TRANSFERRED FROM
LiMITED PARTNERSHIP

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH BALANCE, END OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH:
Cash

Cash escrow and reserve funds

s 2,009,472 $ (47.325)

•  566,151 458:009
(1,615,427)

463 484
(7.200) (3,500)

;
- (64.397)

(1.481,812) (1,203,458)
(216,031) (32.979)

39,781 (18.723)
(65,488)

2,109,823 356,371
297.256 23.890
500,861 (47.5751

2.137.869 (579.2031

7,200 3,500
(1.141.101) (618.410)

(10.797) (17.918)

(1.144.6981 (632,6281

(39,434) 1.935.300
(225.678) (169,972)
(219.3091 (199.1521

(484.4211 1,566.176

508.750 354.145

965,203 549,026

.

62.032

S 1.473.953 S 965.203

$ 1.384,485 $ 899,766
89.468 65,437

s 1,473.953 s 985.203

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CO^f^^i>^ITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP ♦ MERRtMACK COUNTIES INC.

CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28.2022 ANO 2021

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash patd during the year for inleresl

2022

S6.028

2021

62.633

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVmES

Transfer of assets from nevrfyconsoSdatedLP: ^
Accounts recejvabla < ^ S
Prepaid expenses
Properly, net . '
Security deposKs

Total irsnsfer of assets from newly consolidaied LP

Transfer of Dalies from newly consoUdeted LP:
Accounts payetne i'
Accrued expenses -> *
Security deposits
Note payable

n

Total trarisfer of liabiQUes from newly consoUalad IP

Total transfer of panners' capital from newly consolidated LP
Partnership capital previously recorded as Investment (n related parlies

Total Irsnsfer of partners' capital from rtewly consondaled LP

S  2.496
10.627

080,069
8.132

s S 1.001.544

9 -  $ 8.625
7.062

8.132
336.311

S •  $ 360.330

6 $ 499.408
203.836

$ s 703,246

8a« Notts to Conaolidalad Financial Stataments
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM iaELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. IMC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28.2022 AND 2021

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization
Community Action Program Belknap - Mem'mack Counties. Inc. (the Organization) is a
New Hampshire nonprofit organization that serves nutritional, health, living and support
needs of the low income and elderty clients in the two county service areas, as well as
state wide. These services are provided with the financial support of various federal,
state, county and local organizations.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Community Action
Program Belknap-Msrrimack Counties, Inc.. and the following entities as Community
Action Program Belkriap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. has both an economic interest and
control of the entities through a majority voting iriterest in their governing board. AH
significant intercompany items and transactions have tieen eliminated from t>aslc
consolidated financial statements.

•  Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership
• CAP SMC Development Corporation

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying conwlidated financial statements have been prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting In accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis of Presentation

'  The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, which require the
Organization to report information regarding Its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not
subject to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any
purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization: These
net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and board of directors.

Net- assets wtth donor restrictions include net assets subject to
stipulations imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are
temporary In nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual
in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in
perpetuity.
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^ MERRIMACK COUNTIES INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions. When restrictions expire, net assets are reclassified from net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the consolidated statements
of activities.

The Organization had net assets with donor restrictions of $637,529 and $1,048,832 at
February 28. 2022 and 2021, respectively. See Note 14.

Income Taxes

Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, inc. is organized as a
nonprofit corporation and Is exempt from federal Income taxes under Internal Revenue
Code Section 501(cX3). The Internal Revenue Service has determined them to be other
than a private foundation.

The Organization files information returns in the United States and the State of New
Hampshire. The Organization js subject to examinations by tax authorities for three
years.

CAP BMC Development Corporation (the Corporation) is taxed as a "C Corporation
under the Internal Revenue Code. The Corporation accounts for deferred income taxes
under the asset and liability method in accordance with Accounting Standards
Codification No. 740 (ASG 740), 'Accounting for Income Taxes". The objective of this
method is to establish deferred tax assets and liabitities for temporary differences
between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of the Company's assets and
liabilities at the enacted tax rate expected to be In effect when such amounts are
realized or settled. ASG 740 also requires deferred tax assets and liabilities to be shown
separately. There are no deferred tax assets or liabitities. The Corporation has no
federal net operating loss canyforwards available at February 28, 2022 and 2021.

Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership is taxed as a partnership. Federal income taxes are
not payable, or provided by the partnership, Earriings and tosses are included In the
partners' federal Income tax returns based on their share of partnership earnings.
Partnerships are required to file income, tax returns with the State of New Hampshire
and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), Accounting for Income Taxes,
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring, the
benefrts of lax return positions in consolidated financial statements. The Organization
has analyzed its lax position taken on its income tax returns for the past three years,
and has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary In the
Organization's consolidated financial statements.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES: INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

Property

Property and equipment is recorded al cost or. if donated, at the approximate fair value
at the date of the donation. Assets purchased with a useful life In excess of one year
and exceeding $5,000 are capitalized unless a lower threshold is required by certain
funding sources. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Buildings and Improvements 40 years
Equipment, fumiture and vehicles 3-10 years

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated finapcial statements in conformity with United States
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

♦

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Organization considers
all liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at times may
exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has riot experienced any losses In
such accounts and believes It is not exposed to any significant risk with respect to these
accounts. ' '

Contributed Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC No.
958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions f^ade, If the services (a)
create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized skills, and would
otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not recognized as
contributions in the conk>lidated financial statements since the recognition criteria under
FASB ASC No. 958 were not met.

In-Kind Donations / Noncash Transactions

Donated facilities, services and supplies are reflected as revenue and expense in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements, if the criteria for recognition is met.
This represents the estimated fair value for the service, supplies and space that the
Organization might incur under normal operating activities. The Organization received
$592,136 and $490,035 In donated facilities, ser^ces and supplies for the years ended
Febmary 28, 2022 and February 28. 2021, respectively, as follows:

13



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP -

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

The Organization receives contritiutecl professional services that are required to be
recorded in accordance with FASB -ASC No. 958. The estimated fair value of these

services was determined to be $18,731 and $18,937 for the years ended February 28.
2022 and February 28. 2021. respectively.

The Organization also receives contributed food commodities and other goods that are
required to be..recorded In accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair
value of these food commodities and goods was. determined to be $573,405 and
$471,098 for the years ended February 28, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended February 28, 2022 and February 28, 2021 totaled $134,193
and $14,287, respectively.

Inventory

Inventory consists of wealherization supplies and work in process and is valued at the
lower of cost or net realizable value, using the first-in, first-out method. _

Revenue Recognition

Amounts received from'conditional grants and contracts for specific purposes are
generally recognized as Income to the extent that related expenses and conditions are

^ incurred or met. Conditional grants received prior to the conditions being met are
reported as refundable advances. Contributions of cash and other assets are reported
' as with dorior restrictions if they are received with donor imposed stipulations that limit
.'the use of the donated assets. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the samet period In
which the contribution Is received, the Organization reports the support as without donor
restrictions.

Prooram Service Revenue

Program service revenue is recognized as revenue when the services are performed.

Rental Revenue. r -

The Organization derives revertues from the rental of apartment units. Revenues are
recognized as Income, monthly,, when rents become due, and control of the
apartment units is transfemed to the lessees. The Individual leases are for a term of
one year and are cancetable by the tenants. Control of the leased units is transferred
to the lessee in an amount that reflects the consideration the Partnership expects to
be entitled to in exchange for the leased units. The cost incurred to obtain the tease
will be expensed as Incurred.

14



COMMUNITY ACTION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been presented in
the Consolidated Statements of Functionar Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have
been allocated among the program services and supporting activities benefited.
Expenses are charged to each program based on the direct expenses incurred or
estimated usage based on lime spent on each program by staff.

Expense Method of allocation

Wages and benefits Time and effort
Depreciation Actual assets used by program
Ail other expenses Direct assignment

2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of February 28, 2022
and 2021:

2022 2021

Financial assets at year end;
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 1.384,485 $ 899,766
Accounts receivable * 5,244,621 3,762,809
Investments 138,793 127,996

Cash reserves 81,143 62,103
Cash escrow 8.325 3.334

Total financial assets 6.857.367 4.856.008

Less amounts not available to be used within one year
Net assets with donor restrictions 637,529 1,048,832

Reserve funds 61.143 62.103

Amounts not available within one year 718.672 1.110.935

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months S 6.138.695 $ 3.734.073

It Is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of operating
expenses which approximates $6,710,000 and $4,360,000, at February 28, 2022 and
2021, respectively. The Organization has a line of credit with $445,650 and $219,972,
available to borrow on at February 28, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
.  FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount rhanagement expects to collect from
■ balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after management
has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation
allowahce and a credit to accounts receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts
was estimated to be zero, at February 28, 2022 and 2021. The Organization has no
policy for charging Interest on overdue accounts.

4. REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

Grants received In advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue iri the period in which the related-services or expenditures are performed.or
incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met aggregated
$1,537,802 and-$1.036,941 a's of February 28,-2022 and 2021, respectively.

5. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization has a qualified contributory pension .plan which'covers substantially all
'  employees. The cost of the plan is charged to programs administered by the

Organization. The expense of the plan for the year ended February 28: 2022 and 2021
totaled $186,976 and $193,103. respectively.

6. LEASED FACILITIES
Facilities occupied by the Organization for Its community service programs are leased
under various operating leases. The lease terms range from month to month to twenty
years. For the year ended February 28, 2022 and 2021, the annual lease expense for
the leased facilities was $544,299 and $542,317, respectively.

The approximale future rniriimum lease payments on the above leases are as follows:

Year Ended

February 28 Amount

2023 ■' ' $ 478,248
2024 419,395
2025 245.038
2026 88.762
2027 88.762

"  . Thereafter 688.217

Total
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4

7. ACCRUED EARNED TIME

The Organization has accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its employees
have earned and vested with the employees in the amount of $660,158 and $415,580 at
February 28, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

8. BANK LINE OF CREDIT
The Organization has a $200,000 revolving line of credit agreement (the line) with a
bank that is due on demand. The line calls for monthly variable interest payments based
on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (3.25% and 4.75% at February 28. 2022 and
2021, respectively) plus 1%, but not less than 6% per annum. The line is secured by all
the Organization's assets. There was a balance of $154,350 outstanding at February
28, 2022. There was no balanoe'outstanding at February 28, 2021. .

The Organization has an additional revolving line of credit agreement (the line) in the
amount of $400,000. with a bank that is due on demand. The line calls for monthly
variable interest payments based on the HBOR rate (2:41%.and 2.62% at February 28,
2022 and 2021, respectively). Ttie line is secured by all the Organization's assets.
There was no balance outstanding at February 28, 2022. There was a balance of
$380,028 outstanding at February 28, 2021.

9. CONCENTRATION OF RISK
For the year ended February 28, 2022, approximately $13,200,000 (30%). and
$15i300,000 (35%). respectively, of the Organization's total revenue was received from
the Department of Health and Human Services and the Department of Treasury. For
the year ended February 28, 2021, approximately $11,400,000 (42%), of the
Organization's total revenue was received from the. Department of Health and Human
Services. The future scale and nature of the Organization is dependent upon continued
support from these departments.

10. LONG TERM DEBT
Long term debt consisted of the following as of February 28. 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021
■  T-

5.50% note. payable to a financial institution in
monthly installments for principal and Interest of -
$1,634 through July 2039. The note is secured by
property of the Organization. $ 218,228 $ 225,459
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CQMIVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

5.75% note payable to a rmancia! institution In
monthly installments for principal and Interest of
$13,912 through July 2023. The note is secured by
property of the Organization for Lakes Region Family
Center. 219.279 375.827

3.00% note payable to the City of Concord for
leasehold improvements In monthly installments for
principal and interest of $747 through May 2027. The
note Is secured by property of the Organization for the
agency administrative building renovations. * 42,958 50.507

7.00% note payable to a bank In monthly installments
for principal and interest of $4,842 through May 2023.
The note is secured by a first real estate mortgage
and assignment of rents and leases on property
located In Concord, New Hampshire for Early Head
Start. 116,572 164,553

1.00% Paycheck Protection Program loan payable to
a bank in monthly installments for principal and
interest of $7,511 through April 2025. $1,615,427 of
the proceeds received was forgiven during the year
ended February 28.2022. (See Note 11). 280,439 1,935,300

Non-interest bearing note payable by Sandy Ledge
Limited Partnership to New Hanipshire Housing
deferred until June 1. 2034 or until the project is sold
or refinanced or surplus cash Is available. The note is
collaleralized by a mortgage on real estate. 343.081 343.081

Total long-term debt before unamortized deferred
financing cost 1,220,557 3,094,727

Unamortized deferred financing costs (5.803) (6.286)

1,214,754 3,088,441

Less arnounts due within one year 314.265 213.444

Long term portion $ 900.489 $ 2.874.997
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of February 28, 2022 were as follows;

Year Ending
February 28 Amount

2023 $ 314,265
2024 236,212
2025 106,239

2026 32,177
2027 18.840

Thereafter 512.824

t  1.220.557

11. PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM

In April 2020. the Organization received loan proceeds In the amount of $1,935,300
under the Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP"). The PPP, was established as part of
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act ("CARES Act").

On September 14. 2021, the Organization received partial forgiveness In the amount of
$1,615,427. The forgiven proceeds are Included in Income for the year ended February
28, 2022. The remaining $312,873 has been converted to a loan, due In 44 monthly
payments of principal and interest at a rate of 1%. The loan will mature in April 2025.
The outstanding balance on the PPP loan at February 28. 2022 is $280,439. (See Note
10).

12. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of February 28, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

Land $ 279.340 $ 279,340
Building and improvements 7,069,459 6,867,176
Equipment and vehicles 6.335,485 6,117.020
Construction in process • 41.401 16.126

13.745,685 13,281,662
Less accumulated depreciation 7.528.363 7.639.290

Property and equipment, net S 6.217.322 $ 5.642.372

Depreciation expense for the years ended February 28, 2022 and 2021 totaled
$566,151 and $458,009. respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

13. CONTINGENCIES

The Organization .receives grant funding from various sources. Under the tenns of these
agreements, the Organization is required to use the funds within a certain period and for
purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found
not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization
might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have, been made , for this
contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined or assessed

•  as of February 28. 2022.

14. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of February 28,-2022 and 2021;

2022 2021

NH Food Pantry Coalition $  663 $  663

Senior Center ^ ■ 143,437 142,817
Elder Services 68,427 499,201

Mary Gale 25,629 -

NH Rotary Food Challenge 5,064 5,058

Summer Feeding 47,540 60,433

Common Pantry - 5,512

Caring Fund • 8.792 8,791

Agency - FAP 27,307 2.604

Agency Head Start , 222,258 224,847

Agency - FP/PN 87,253 - 87,387

Community Crisis 350 350

Other Programs 809 11.169

Total net assets with donor restrictions Si 637.529 S  1.048.83?

20



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ̂
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

I

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organization serves as the management agent for the following organizations;

Related Party Function

Belmont Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Epsom Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Alton Housing for the Elderly, Inc. HUD Property
Pembroke Housing for the Elderly. Inc. HUD Property
Newbury Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Kearsarge Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Riverside Housing Corporation HUD Property
Twin Rivers Community Corporation Property Development
Ozanam Place, inc. Transitional Supportive

Services

TRCC Housing Limited Partnership I Low Income Housing Tax
Credit Property

The services performed by the Organization included, marketing, accounting, tenant
selection (for the HUD properties). HUD compliance (for the HUD properties), and
maintenance of property.

The amount due from the related parties for operating activities (collectively) at Febojary
28, 2022 and 2021 was $324,385 and $181,384, respectively, and is Included in
accounts receivables. Additionally, during the year ended February 28, 2022, $65,488
was loaned to a related party and is recorded as an other asset on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

16. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has also invested money
relating to Its Fix-it program in certain mutual funds. The fair value of the mutual funds
totaled $138,793 and $126.996 at February 28. 2022 and 2021. respectively.

ASC Topic No. 825-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair value which
focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework In generally
accepted accounting principles for measuring fair vaiue which emphasizes that fair value te
a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In accordance with FASB ASC 820,
the Organization may use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost
approaches to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant^
assumptions in fair value measurements, FASB ASC 820 establishes a fair value,
hierarchy, which prioritizes the Inputs used In measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3
measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are
described as follows:

21



BELKNAP -

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

Level V- Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
^ active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

^  Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
'  prices In active markets, wHictr are either directly or indirectly observable as
' of the reporting dale, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the vaiuation methodology are unobservable inputs In
situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
' arrd the reporting eritity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
^ pricing of the asset or liability Including assumptions regarding risk.

At February 28, 2022 and 2021, the Organization's Investments were dasstfied as Level 1
and were based on fair value.

Fair Value Measurements using Significant Observable Inputs (Level

2022 2021

Beginning balance - mutual funds $ 126i996 $ 109,078
'  Total,gains - mutual funds ' 11.797 17.918

Ending balance-mutual funds S 138.793 $ 126.996

The carrying ambuni of cash, current assets, other assets and current liabilities,
approxirifiates fair value iJecause of the short maturity of those instruments.

The Organization also had $1,000 invested in a Partnership, The Lakes Region
Partnership for Public Health, at February, 28, 2021. During the year ended February 28.
2022, the Organization Is no longer a partner and a final K-1 was received.

17. OTHER MAKERS
The impact,of the novel cpnonavlrus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its spread
are affecting the Organization's business. The significance of the impact of these
disruptior\s, including the,extent of their adverse impact on the Organization's financial
and operational results, will be dictated by the length of time that such disruptions
continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable duration of the COVID-19
pandemic and the Impact of governmental regulations that might be imposed in
response to the pandemic.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

18. TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTEREST

During the year ended February 28, 2021. Community Action Program of Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc. acquired a partnership iriterest in a low-Income housing
limited partnership. Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership,

The following is a summary of the assets and liabilities of the partnership at the date of
acquisition.

Date of Transfer 03/01/2020

Cash

Cash reserves

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Property, net
Other assets

3,793
58,239

2,496

10,827

980.089

8.132

Total assets

Note payable
Other liabilities

S  1.Q63.576

$ 336,311

24.019

Total liabilities 360,330

Partners' capital

Total liabilities and partners'
capital

703.246

^  1 063.576

19. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year financial statements have been
redassified to enhance the comparability with the presentation of the current year.
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NOtES TO CONSOLiDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the consolidated
statement of financial position dale, but before the consolidated financial statements are
available to be issued. Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that
provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the consolidated statement
of financial position date, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing
consolidated financial statements. Non-recognized subsequent events are events that
provide evidence about conditions that did, not exist at the consolidated statement of
financial position date, but arose after that date. Management has evaluated
subsequent events through September 8, 2022, the date the consolidated fir^ncial
statements were available to be issued.
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

(See Independent Auditors' Report)
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 26. 2022

N0TE1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of sKpenditures of federal awards (the Schedule)
Includes the federal award activity of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties. Inc. under programs of the federal governrhent for the year
ended February 28. 2022. The Information in this Schedule is presented In
accordance,with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, end Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., it is not Intended to and does not present the
financial posltiori. changes In net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained In the Uniform Guidance, wherein,certain types of expenditures are not
' allowable or are limited as tOsteimbursernent. Negative amounts shown on the
' Schedulerepresent adiustmerits or credits -made In the normal course of

business to amounts reported as expenditures In prior years.

Tb

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Community Action Program Belknap-fyierrimack Counties, Inc. has elected not to
'  use the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform

Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD COMMODITIES AND VEHICLES

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COWIPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUOmNG STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties, Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited, In accordance with.the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
Stales of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained In Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of February 28,. 2022, and
the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated September 6. 2022.

Report on Intemat Controt Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements,, we considered Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s Internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s Internal control.

A defidency In intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or emptoyees, In the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and- correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in.lnternal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
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our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in Internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or signlHcant deftciencies may exist that were
not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s nhancial statements are free from material misstatement,
we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncpmpliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to t>e reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of Internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's Internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed In accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
September 6,2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS* REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH

MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Menrimack Counties, Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each M^jor Federal Program

We have audited Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMS Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action , Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended February 28, 2022.
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs are
Identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. complied, in all
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended February
28,2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federaf Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America: the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, Issued by the ConriptroHer General of the United
States: and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrativa Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

■We are required to be independent of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major'
federal program; Our audit does not provide a legal determirwtion of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements
refened to above.
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ResponstbltiUes of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to al)ove and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of^laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to* Community Adion Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s
federal programs. '

\

Auditors' Responsibilities for (he Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the cornpliance requirements referred to above occurred.' whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on Community Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, inc.'s
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance nmH always detect material noncompliance when It exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as
fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is
considered material if there is a substaritial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it
would influence the Judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about
Corhmunily Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with the
requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in-accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniforrh Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional Judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess.lhe risks of material noncompliance,.wfiethef due to fraud or error,
and.design and perform audit procedures responsive to those, risks. Such procedures
Include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Community Action Program
Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of Community Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties,
. Iric.'s internal control over corripliance relevant to the audit In order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances and to test and report on internal
control over compliance (n accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
Beiknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned'scope and tiniing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in.internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency tn internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompllance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, In internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompllance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deftdency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of defidencies. in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in Internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of Intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section at>ove and was not dedgned
to identify all deficiencies in Intemal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. • Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any defidencies In ■ Internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that have
not been identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
September 8,2022
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements
of Community Action Program . Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. were prepared in
accordance with generaliy accepted accounting principles.

2. No sigriificant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and otfier Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed In
Accordance witti Government Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Governmerit Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over maior federal award programs are
reported in.the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
On Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors" report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion dh all
major programs..

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
. section 200.516(a).-

7. The programs tested as major programs include:
U.S. Departrnent of Health and Human Services. Aging Cluster 93.044,93.045 and
93.053; U.S. Department ofjransportation, Formula Grants for Rural Areas, 20.509;
U.S. Department of the Treasury, Emergency Rental Assistance Program, 21.023.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $1,223,554.

9. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. was determined to not be a
low-risk audltee.,

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None - .

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT

None ' . ■
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 26. 2022

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

2021-001

Condition: the financial statements presented to the auditor at the beginning of fleldwork
included accounts that had hot been reconciled accurately or In a timely manner.

Recommendation: The auditors' recommend that the financial close process includes a review
of all significant accounts. i ^ .

Current Status: Accounts have been reconciled accurately and in a timely manner. Not a
repeated finding in the current year. ^
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Effective 9/29/2022

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRliWACK COUNTIES, INC. ̂
EMPOWERING 'COMMUNITIES SINCE I96S

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dennis T. Martino, President
Board member since; 2/24/2005

Tracy Vergason
Board member since: 5/12/2022

Chris Pyles, Vice President
Board member since: 1/14/2021

Theresa M. Cromwell
Board member since: 5/10/2005

Safiya Wazir, Treasurer
Board member since: 11/2/2016

Kathy Goode
Board member since: 10/29/2009

A. Bruce Carri, Secrefary/C/erik
Board member since: 3/12/2020

Sara A. Lewko

Board member since: 2/21/2001

Heather Brown

Board member since: i/15/2009

David Siff, Esq.
Board member since: 10/2/2013

Ashley Reed
HS Policy Council Chairperson
Board member since: 5/12/2022

David Croft ■

Board member since: 5/13/2021

Current fiscal year (3/1/22 - 2/28/23) board meetings - 3/10/22,5/12/22,9/8/22,11/10/22,1/12/23
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

SENIOR ENERGY ASSISTANCE SERVICES (SEAS) - PY 2022

SEAS PY22

KEY PERSONNEL

Name and Title

Jessica Anstey, Fuel Assistance Manager

Leah Richards, Director of
Energy & Area Resource Centers

Jill Lesmerises, Chief Fiscal Officer

Jeanne AgrI, Chief Executive Officer

Annual

Salary

$44,850.00

$78,702.00

$103,000.04

$145,916.10



4  *

Jessica
Anstey

•

Office Administrator with experience refined over the past 12 years of knowledge and skill building in the
field. Experience with facilitation of staff training and development and a skilled relationship builder with
the proven ability to work with differing personality and communication styles. Possesses experience
with direct responsibility for client case management, quality assurance and adherence to best standards

and practlces.accordlng to current federal and state regulations. Intuitive ability to coordinate effective
strategies for time management, while striving to achieve positive outcomes for the company and
clients. My strength is in the ability to recognize how to best be helpful, and fill roles where needed
most. It Is very rewarding to be part of a well-functioning team with aspirations and goals we can achieve
together.

Experience

MAY 2022-PRESENT ' . !

Fuel Assistance Program Manager/CAP Belknap Merrlmack Counties
Hired to serve as the Fuel Assistance Program Manager, which oversees all aspects of the day-to-day
operations and management of the Fuel Assistance Program for two counties. This includes planning,
impiementatlon, monitoring, and reporting.

FEBRUARY 2017-FEBRUARY 2022 '

Account Director and Officer Manager/Onslte Drug Testing of New England
Hired to Coordinate a fast paced office offering the following services; drug testing, physicals, paternity
testing, workplace and DOT compliance program management services, consulting and cbnriecting and
sales of materials for on-site drug and alcohol testing. Responsibilities included customer service for all
accounts and.their clients, organizing appointment schedules for customers onsite and off, coordination
with medical doctors to complete data entry of results reported by physician, maintaining data
collection and entry for federal databases for the United States Department of Transportation, liaison
forthe State of NH Child Welfare Systems to interpret and report testing results.

APRIL 2010- FEBRUARY 2017

Administrative and Inventory Speclailst/McLane Co.
Hired as a Billing cierk and promoted to multiple administrative roles within a seven-year career with the
company. Duties and responsibilities Included billing for all customer accounts, inventory, research of
losses, maintenance of Inventory, communication with and coordination of jobs and services with truck
drivers, mechanics, vendors, and'suppliers. Record keeping and maintenance skills for the fleet and ail
vendor transactions for timely payment and positive customer relations.



Education

May 2006

Associates Degree- Medical Assistant/Hesser College, NH

Skills

• Proficient with Microsoft Word, Access, Excel, PowerPoint and Outlook • Superior Attention to

Customer Satisfaction • Detail Oriented • Advanced Communication Skills * Problem Identification and

Resolution



LEAH RICHARDS

llV. .

EDUCATION

Master of Education

Higher Education

Ohio Universfty
2004^2006

Bachelbr.of Science

Journalism

Ohio University

2000^2004

TEACHINQ

PCC201

Professional

communication and

career planning course

Instructor, two semesters

SNHU 201

Seminar course focused

on academic and sodai

transition to college

Instructor, six semesters

SNHU 303

Course for college

Juniors focusing on life

after college

Instructor, two semesters

RA Training Course

Course focused on

leadership, social Justice

Instructor, four semesters

UClOO: FYE Course

Developed lesson plans

for four-credit course for

first year students .

Instructor, one semester

PRdFESSIONAL PRibFILE
Agile, coliaborative administrator with 17 years of progressive, multifaceted experience in

^ non-profit settings. Visionary, strategic leader and strong supervisor with a keen eye for
detail. Confident, techrtologlcally sawy communicator with experience,presenting at
national, re^onal, and local conferences. Particular strengths In establishing rapport,
providing empowering supervision; problerti solving, supi»rtlhfe vulnerable'popuiations,
leveraging technofc^, process imprwement, and managing change.

EXPERIENCE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmadc Counties
Concord, NH 2021 - Present

Director, Energy and Area Resource Centers Feb 2022-Present
■  pirec^ supervise the Fuel Assistance and Electric Assistance programs

Oversee Emergency Food Assistance for agency and supervise a Food Assistance
Manager and three busy food pantries

Manage team of 25 staff members supporting energy and food assistance through
network of resource centers In five locations

Serve a member of the agency's senior leadership team

Area Center Operations Manager Apr 2021-Feb 2022

Supervised staff and volunteers for area resource centers In five locations
Managed three food pantries and served as Emergency Food Assistance Coordinator
Asslsted.wlth all operations, including process and workflow Improvement, hiring and
training, budgeting and ordering, and implementing new technologies

Southern New Hampshire University

Manchester, NH 2010-2021
Ten years of progressive leadership in student support and administration. Began In
direct service role as advisor before leading department and now multiple
departments. Coordinated robust advising program, including leading through
successful office restructure. Created and Implernented new systems, policies,
and processes. Increased faculty usage of Early Warning system by 200%.

Assistant Dean, Student Success Aug 2017-Apr 2021

Provided leadership to division of multiple departments with nearly 30 FT staff and
more than 150 student staff (both paid and volunteer positions)
Supported multiple directors of busy departments with daily operations,
prioritization, collaboration, and change management
Established and grew academic coaching model to support at-rlsk students
Managed division-wide and campus-wide projects, including staff onboarding
processes, policy revision, and communication plans
Led as member of Enrollment Management and Student Success leadership team,
providing insight to campus leadership on student retention and persistence



LEAH RICHARDS

SERVICE AND

COMMITTEE

WORK

Emergency Food and

Shelter Merrimack

County local board '

(chair, 2021-present)

Neighbor Helping

Neighbor Board

member

Scholastic Standing

Committee (chair,

2017-2021)

University Policy

Advisory Board

NACADA NH State

Liaison'and Steering

Committee member

(state rep, 2017-19)

Basic Needs Support

General Education

Committee

Judicial Hearing Board

University Honors

Advisory Board

Safe Zones Facilitator

Student Club Advisor

to Generation Equality

Retention Taskforce

President's

Commission on LGBTQ

Advocacy

(chair, 2012-2014)

EXPERIENCE continued

Director, Academic Advising Office Jul2014-Aug 2017

Cultivated, implemented, and assessed successful, developmental first year/transfer
student advising program for on-campus students

Coordinated all advising services for campus of 3,000 students

Developed ongoing training and resources to educate and empower 135 faculty/staff
academic advisors. Increased faculty usage by early warning system by 200%

Directly supervised nine full-time staff members and, indirectly,-40 student advisors

Provided leadership on policy development and revision, budget, program

development, event planning, and strategic planning

Utilized a variety of technologies including multiple CRM and information systems,,
survey and data tools, scheduling software, and film editing and infographics tools

Assistant Director, Academic Advising Aug 2012-Jun 2014

Created initiatives and best practices for first year students on campus

Focused on campus collaboration development of high-impact practices. Including
piloting themed learning communities and a new registration.model for new students

Academic Advisor Jul2010-Jul 2012

Advised caseload of approximately 200 primarily first year college students,
developing relationships, programs, and initiatives to support their development

University of New Hampshire

Durham, NH 2006-2010

Four years of increased responsibility in residence life department focused on deep,

developmental Interactions with students. Co-led New Staff Development team.

Organized a 'Future Leaders of Student Affairs' conference and workshop series.

'  Residence Halt Director Aug 2006 - Jun 2010

Cultivated community in two residence halls with populations of 150-300 students

Entrusted to launch a brand new traditional and suite-style hall which housed a
multicultural theme floor

Partnered with students and faculty to develop learning communities focusing on

ciylc engagement & diversity
Served as a conduct hearing officer, budget manager, academic coach, hall council
advisor, and crisis responder



il l Lesmerises

Profile

Experienced and self-motivated Accounting Professional bringing forth over 30 years of
valuable progressive non-profit experience. Looking for an opportunity to use my non-profit
experience to help guide an organization. Areas of experience range from cash management,
bank reconciliations, accounts receivable, fixed assets, accounts payable, payroll, audit ^
preparation, budget preparation, monitoring subrecipients, 403B pension conipliance and audit
preparation, employee benefits, and system implementations.

Employment Experience

10/21-Presient

Chief Fiscal Officer. Community Action Program Belknap-Meirimack Counties. Inc.

CAPBM is a not-for-profit with 25 million in revenue with 11 legal entities. The Agency has over 300
employees and holds 8 million in assets.

Oversee the daily activities of 6 fiscal staff, conduct budget meetings, prepare work papers for annual
audit for agency and 10 housing projects, manage the daily cash flow of the agency and 10 housing
projects, prepare paperwork for monitorings conducted by various funding sources, and review
accounts payable input, journal entries, accounts receivable input, and monthly billings.

10/17-12/21

Sertlor Accountant. Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.

Southern New Hampshire Services is a not-for-profit with 49 million In revenue with 30 legal
entities. The Agency has over 400 employees and holds 84 million in assets.

Conduct monthly budget meetings, bill funding sources monthly, prepare vvork papers for
annual audit, monitor subrecipients, prepare paperwork for monitoring conducted by various
funding sources, review accounts payable input and manage daily workflow, provide backup for
accounts payable and fuel assistance.payable positions, prepare surveys for various
governmental agencies, prepare ACA forms, prepare paperwork for 403B annual audit and file



5500, member and secretary of the 403B Committee, instrumental in getting PaperSave up and
running within the Fiscal Department, prepare work papers for 26 housing programs

11/02-10/17

Staff Accountant. Communitv Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties, ir^c.

At the time of my employment. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties was a not-for-

p_rofit with 20 million in revenue. The Agency had over 479 employees and held over 7 million In assets.

Reconciled 36 bank accounts, billed funding sources monthly, prepared work papers for annual

audit, prepared paperwork for monitoring by various funding sources, prepared and entiered
journal entries, reconciled general ledger accounts, reviewed daily accounts payable input,
entered cash receipts in A/R system, provided backup for both payroll and accounts
payable/receivable positions, managed daily workflow, and trained new accounting staff
members

1/00-9/02

Account Supervisor (for 2 Companies). Whole Life. Inc.

Whole Life, Inc. Is a not-for-profit with 6 million In revenue. The Agency had over 140 employees and
held over 4 million in assets. ' *

Prepared monthly and quarterly reports, yearly budgets, monthly invoices, work papers, and

cost reports, prepared and entered journal entries, reconciled general ledger accounts, and
billed Medicaid

9/98-1/00 . . ^

Account Receivable Clerk ffor 4 Companies). CSN Financial. Inc.

Coded cash receipts, prepared monthly invoices, and prepared accounts receivable and
revenue work papers

5/93-9/98

Assistant Controller. Biosvstems. Inc.

Collected past due accounts receivable both foreign and domestic, provided switchboard relief,
handled petty cash funds, audited salesmen expenses, cut accounts payable checks, prepared
journal entries, performed payroll functions



3/88-5/93

Business Officer. The Caring Community of Connecticut. Inc.

u.

The Caring Community of Connecticut is a not-for-profit with 18 million In revenue.

Answered phortes, filed correspondence, handled petty cash funds, typed correspondence,
coded cash receipts and disbursements, reconciled bank accounts, screened job applicants,
prepared work papers, and participated in administrator on-call program

Educational Background

1996-2000 .

Bachelor Degree In Accounting, Eastern Connecticut State University
Graduated curn laude

1992-1996

Associate Degree In Accounting, Three Rivers Community Technical College
Named to Dean's list, graduated with high honors

1981-1985

Merrimack Valley High School -

Member of National Honor Society, named to Honor Roll for 3 years

Volunteer Work

1/17 - Present

Director on The Loudon Communications Council

Council ls responsible for the distribution of a monthly newspaper to the residents of Loudon

and to maintain the Town of Loudon NH website. Also served as Treasurer of the Council for 2

years.



Jeanne Agri

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE

^  *

Versatile and experienced leader with highly developed conununicatidn skills: written, verbal and presentational. Adept
in coaching and mentoring cjnployccs and collcagnes as evidenced by my selection by the National Ofllcc of Head Start to
serve as a mentor for new Head Start Directors. Commined to continiiou.s improvemeiit of acliviiie.s to ensure they meet

outcomes approved by the board througli strategic planning, creating goal-oriented systems and conformance with all
IochI. state and federal guidance.

WORK EXPERIENCE

Community Action Program Belknap-Mcrrimack Counties, Concord, NH
Executive Director 2018-present

•  Assures the organization has long-range strategy which makes consistent and timely progress towards meeting
the Agencies overall mission

•  Responsible for the general supervision of all grant awards, ensuring that all statutory, regulatory, and /or
program and fmanciai requirements arc met, that generally accepted accounting principles arc applied, and
that alt program and financial policies and procedures are adhered to.

•  Provide leadership in developing programs, organizational structures and financial systems that carry out the
instructions and policies authorized by the Board • ^ '

•  Establish sound working relationships and cooperative arrangements with community groups, organizations
and all funding sources important to the development of the agency and programs.

•  Sec that the Board Director is kept fully informed and up to date on the condition of the organization and all
important Federal, State or local requirements impacting on the Agency and/or its programs.

Southern New Hampshire Services, Manchester, NH
Education and Nutrition Operations Director 2016-2018

•  Coordinate, manage and monitor workings of Child Dcvcloprnent, Women Infant and Children, and
Literacy Program$,as well as development of an agency wide Two-Generational Approach to services

•  Formulate, improve and implement departmental and organizational policies and procedures to
maximize output. Monitor adherence to rules, regulations, and procedures •

•  Assist in the recruitment and placement of required staff; establishment of organizational structure;
delegation of tasks and accountabilities . '

•  Supervise stalT, including establishment of work schedules and monitoring and evaluating performance in
partnership with Executive Director

•  Assist in development of strategic plans for operational activity; implement and manage operational
plans ' •

Director of Child Development Programs . 2001-2016
•  Hire, coach and evaluate the performance of Program Managers, Specialists, Coordinators, Center

Directors, Teachers and Head Start support staff
•  Provide coaching; and learning opportunities for all employees focused on promoting, supporting and

irhproving early development of children from the prenatal stage to five years of age using research -
based practices

•  Plan and implement strategic iniervenllons with Program Managers, Specialists, Coordinators and
Center Directors for sites needing administrative support and direction

•  Plan, coordinate and facilitate regular leadership meetings for cvaluating and strengthening systems to
maintain the highest quality of services in compliance with Head Start Performance Standards

•  Develop internal structures, systems, and policies supporting major content areas of Head Start program
including education, health, mental health, social services, parent involvement, nutrition, disabilities, and
transportation



•• Collaborate with managers and internal fiscal department in the monitoring and control of componcn!
budgets; identification and interpretation of Head Start and community nccds; conformance to the
Performance Standards and other regulatory^ requirements

•  Work in partnership with internal departments to support project goals and meet customerocpectations
•  Establish and maintain relationships and collaborations with public school districts, systems of higher

education, and other community agencies and partners
•  Ensure adequate systems in place to maintain the highest quality of services to children and families in

compliance with Head Start Performance Standards
•  Ensure consistency in service delivery across' the program with attention to inclusive practices and

integration of component areas; encourage continuous improvement of systems.

Quality Assurance Director/Co-Director for Child Development Programs 1999-2001
•  Established and managed a robust monitoring, analysis and evaluation system with well-defined results,

milestones, and targets inclusive of Continuous Quality Improvement practices
•  Monitored for quality and compliance at Grantee and Delegate level
•  Worked closely with program Director to review, track and assess monitoring compliahce throughout

program operations
•  Developed and implements a written quality assurance and performance evaluation plan in conjunction with

Governing Board, Policy Council
•  Interpreted and evaluated a variety of information to present it in meaningful oral or written form for

varied audiences and provide reliable analysis leading to sound decision-making

Area Manager/Education Manager 1997-1999
•  Supervision of various Child Care sites including direct supervision of Center Directors/Site Managers
•  Coordinate personal and professional development and uaining plans for staff and ensure teaching staff

progress towards educational requirements as supported by the Performance Standards
•  Documented and administered both positive and negative feedback and utilize Perforroance

Improvement Plans when warranted.^ v

Child Care Center Director/Site Manager 1995-1997
•  Supervised, mentorcd, coach and administered work plans and directives to staff
•  Communicated areas of performance improvement to staff and promote training that reflected individual

needs of st^ members and the team as a whole '

•  Ensure program compliance with codes of state and local licensing agencies and grant requirements

New Hampshire Technicfll College, Nashua, NH
Instructor

1995-1997

Taught Child Growth & Development and assisted in curriculum development for Early Childhood
Education Program

Planned and organized instruction to maximize documented student learning
Employed appropriate teaching and learning strategies to communicate subject matter to students
Modified, where applicable, instructional methods and strategies to meet diverse student needs

EDUCATION

Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH
Master's in Business Administration

Notre Dame College, Manchester, NH
Bachelors of Arts in Elementary Education

Cv

June 2017

1981


